
UNITED NATIONS

(~, ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL COUNCIL
~ml Eighteenth Session

~~ OFFICIAL RECORDS

-
item 1 of
xecutive
14 July

horized by
>r corlsideratiiJ;i
:ision
,ecutive

"m.

CONTENTS
Page

Organization and operation of the Council and its commis­
sions and amendment of rule 82 of the rules of procedure
ofthe Council (Council resolutions /114 (XIII), M2 (XIV),
H3 (XIV), /1/15 I (XIV), 512 A (XVII) and 530 (XVII),
and General Assembly resolution 735 (VIII)) (E{2541,
E{2542, E{259B, E{2623, E{2625) . . . . . . . . .. 19

President: Mr. Juan 1. COOKE (Argentina)

Present:
The representatives of the following countries:

Argentina, Australia, Belgium, China, Cuba, Czecho­
slovakia, Ecuador, Egypt, France, India, Norway,
Pakistan, Turkey, Union of Soviet Socialist Republics,
United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland,
United States of America, Venezuela, Yugoslavia.

Observers from the following Member States: Brazil,
Chile, Costa Rica, Dominican Republic, Indonesia,
Israel, Mexico, Netherlands, Poland.

The representatives of the following specialized
agencies: International Labour Organisation, Food and
Agriculture Organization of the United Nations, United
Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organiza­
tion, International Monetary Fund, World Health
Organization, World Meteorological Organization.

Organization and operation of the Council and its
commissions and amendment of rule 32 of the
l'Ules of procedure of the Council (Council resolu­
tions 414 (XIII), 442 (XIV). 443 (XIV). 445 I
(XIV), 512 A (XVII) and 530 (XVII), and Gen­
eral Assembly resolution 735 (VIII» (E/2541
E/2542, E/2598, E/2623, E/2625)

[Agenda item 29J

1. The PRESIDENT welcomed the Secretary-General
to the 796th meeting and invited him to address the
CounciL

2. Mr. HAMMARSKJOLD (Secretary-General) wished
fmt to thank the President for his kind welcome; he
did not need to assure him of the very great interest
taken by all members of the Secretariat in the activities
of the Council, or of his personal feeling of responsibility
in connexion with its work.
3. He thought that it was now generally recognized
that the real basis for long-term development in the
direction of peace and security was the establishment of
sound economic and social conditions. That placed the
Council at the very centre of the United Nations' work.
What was more natural in such circumstances than that
the Secretary-General should give all the time he could

19

796th Meeting

Monday, 5 July 1954,
at 10.30 a.m.

PALAIS DES NATIONS, GENEVA

find to close co-operation and collaboration with the
Council? He was happy that that co-operation was
welcomed by the Council and, in that spirit, was greatly
encouraged in placing before the Council proposals which
were a.n expression of his concern for the sound develop­
ment of the United Nations Organization and for the
best possible outcome of the efforts being mutually
made by its main organs.

4. The importance of the item which the Council was
then discussing needed no emphasis, for the organization
and operation of the Council and its commissions bore
directly on the functioning not only of the system of
economic and social co-operation envisaged in the
Charter, but also, fundamentally and decisively, of the
whole work for peace. It was obviously not for him, at
that stage, to make suggestions about the scope of the
Council's discussion, and he would therefore venture to
offer only a few comments on the documentation he had
submitted. He would also be at the Council's disposal
for the next fortnight to provide such additional informa­
tion or comments as might be needed. He hoped that the
Council would understand if at times he ventured to
take the initiative in one direction or another, or to
express personal views, because the logical sequel to the
deep concern which, as he had already mentioned, the
Council and the Secretariat shared, was that the two
parties were collaborators, and it should be recognized
that in the process of collaboration constitutional lines
might occasionally get a little crossed. He would ask
the Council's indulgence should he sometimes appear to
be too eager to help; he would be prompted only by a.
sincere desire to be of assistance to the Council, and
he hoped, therefore, that his action would be properly
understood. .

5. The Secretariat had submitted three documents to
the CounciL The f1[5t, document Ej2541 of 12 February
1954, related to the implementation of the existing
resolutions concerning the organization and operation of
the Council and its commissions, especially Council
resolution 414 (XIII). I-le warmly endorsed the aims set
out in the preamble to section A I of that resolution­
namely, the adequate preparation of meetings, the cir­
culation of documentation in good time, the spreading
of work more evenly over the year, the advance deter­
mination of dates of discussion, and the avoidance of
double discussion. Some of the measures taken to
achieve those aims-notably the proposals for the
allocation of broad groups of items between the spring
and summer sessions of the Council-had not so far
proved practicable.

6. The possibility of making other arrangements called
for serious consideration, taking into account alL relevant
circumstances. He felt that there lay the key to a few

E/SR,796



---­jltI\td inval
~s,

I' The nel
;~Mish, at
~tofdet(

~Iosay, t
~what it si

ooil.

I; The thil
~ lting tc
!ifiJ the la
inat was rei
UrA one exh
lIID1unicatll
ilrioUsgroUl
~I:tento~

l\JJmerely I

~3Clivities

lathieve a
I ilie variou
!It!Jofthem

I;, Only th
nil! succeed(
~I the new
llfiolding fo

!\ Once th
Jctirilies hac
~.~Iish ma
required for I

!lJ 1l:en ta
'~~rlant s

mn!ilional :
,m~ had COl

'wold be so
~ihip and
illlaff men
I:me reducti
luneeded i
IJlll1er as n

I iI>:Iwhere
~Iwork si

'. imn~oned,

: :111,uy been
, 1'), He esti

"tio~ would
. 0!jl;,Uer thal
, :;rioo repre
!,11ious inl!
, !\lIi as the

;llt to be 1

11 what v
!i\ihle wa:

. ), Asubs

'. that it
i;:Mstress
;'I! Ihe gree

, ~jinomy to
I ~i'ions, on

c;1~e Gen
',nunes \VI
I.. bl '",m yIT

:J'lrecom~

Economic and Social Affairs in so far as they concerned
the Council's programmes and documentation. The
Council, at its seventeenth session, had been good enough
to defer consideration in order that it might have these
conclusions before it, and he trusted that it would find
them both helpful and generally acceptable.

10. He had had an opportunity of consulting the executive
heads of the specialized agencies about those suggestions
at the recent meeting of the Administrative Committee
on Co-ordination (ACC). Their comments would be
found in paragraphs 4-() of ACe's sixteenth report
(E/2607), which was also before the Council. The pri­
lIlary purpose of the review had been to re-assess, in
consultation and in agreement with the other principal
United Nations organs concerned, the part which the
Secretariat could most appropriately and constructively
play in furthering the aims and purposes of the Charter,
and, in that context, to make a fresh appreciation of
the nature and scope of the activities which it could
most usefully undertake.

1'1. Describing the general philosophy and technique
underlying the Secretariat's review of United Nations
activities, he explained that the Secretariat's object had
been to make the Organization as efficient and helpful to
governments as possible. It was natural that during its
first eight formative years of expansion and develop­
ment the United Nations should have sought to test its
infiuence ill various directions and to tryout and study
various ways and methods. Any organization in it"s
first youth was likely sometimes to try to do more than
it could practically and usefully undertake. Hence,
reconsideration was called for at a certain stage, Self­
criticism was natural in a body like the United Nations
in order to ascertain what ground had been covered and
in which direction progress had been achieved or failure
encoun tered.

1.2. It was always an open question when and how such
a review should be undertaken. In instituting his review,
first of the Secretariat and later of the Organization ill
general, he had been prompted by the consideration
that the Organization had now reached a sufficient degree
of maturity to require re-examination of its efforts and
of the direction of its work.

13. While in such an operation the Secretary-General
and the Secretariat bore only part of the responsibility,
since the respoIlsibilities were, in fact, carried by all
the principal organs of the United Nations, the Secre­
tariat was at the same time a permanent body with
specific administrative responsibilities, and for that
reason it had seemed to him that the main organs might
rightly expect help from the Secretariat and that the
latter should take upon itself the responsibility of pro­
viding, not guidance or a lead, but a basis on which the
principal organs could conduct their examination.

14. In consultation with the officials mainly concerned,
he had accordingly reviewed all the various activities 01
the Organization. The fundamental questions to which
that review had been directed were: What does the
United Nations do? Why does it do it ? an How does
it do it? The result had been to provide the Secretariat
with a map of the United Nations work which had

Economic and Social Council - Eighteenth Session20

of the main practical problems with which the Council
was faced. Others-··-especially the arrangements for
ensuring more thorough advance preparation of the
Council's programme of work for the year as a whole
and for any particular scssions..-had already yielded
useful results, and the Council might therefore wish to
confirm them. It would, no doubt, also wish to consider
other practical measures likely to enhance the effective­
ness o[ its work. Such measures should, he submitted,
aim above all at keeping tbe scope of the sessional
agendas to manageable proportions, while at the same
time ensuring greater concentration upon matters of
priority importance where concrete results were achiev­
able through international action.
7. \Vith regard to the functional commissions, the sole
specific suggestion made in document E/2541 (paragraph
Hi) concerned the Social Commission, about which
the General Assembly had referrl'd to the Conncil a
number of different, and to some extent conflicting,
proposals. His principal general suggestions were, first,
that the Social Commission might continue to meet
every other year, and secondly, that, while the Commis­
sion cuuld dischargl~ its broad policy functions through
its ..hicmli~!.. ,s,(:~~i(l,Tl~, it might also belletlt from the
assistance of some expert working committees in the
more sIwcialized technical tasks it was called upon to
carry ou t. Hc would like, however, to add two general
comments abuut the functional commissions: in the
first place, it did not seem likely that, with the develop­
IIlent of long-term work programmes for the Secretariat,
the need for the commissions to exercise general super­
vision of policy and work would continue to be so im­
portant as it had been in the formative years of the
Organization. Iu the second'place, the ccinsiderations
which he would develop later in connexion with the
review of the substantive work of the Secretariat had
an important bearing on the question of future arrange­
ments relating to individual commissions and suh­
commissions of the Council.
H. The cOIlsiderations he had just mentioned were also
of direct relevance to the subject dealt with in the second
document he had submitted to the Council-namely,
the brief memorandum on the control and limitation of
documentation {E/2rI42)-in which the Council's attention
was drawn to General Assembly resolution 780 (VIII),
which invited the Council to pursue and intensify its
c/forts to rednce further the documentation required by
it and by its functional and regional commissions. The
same General Assembly resolution also invited all United
Nations organizations to co-operate with him in his
efforts to reduce the volume and to improve the quality
of United Nations documentation. He knew that in that
matter, which was of vital importance to the achieve­
ment of the Council's purposes, he coulfl count on its
full support. He would suggest that, in conveying the
(;eneral Assembly's request to the functional and regional
commissions, the Council might formally invite them to
consult clusl'ly with him with the object of realizing as
fnlly as possible the General Assembly's objectives...
!J. The third report he had SUhllliilcd (E/2rJ!)S), which,
as he hall already illdicalcd, burl' directly upou the other
t wo, contained the conclusions drawn from the review
of the organization and work of the Departments of



lOW sud
; review,
ation in~;

deralio~l\
t degrffP
Jrts anf

21

21. Having explained the general administrative policy
which formed the frame of the questions under considera­
tion by the Council, he would now revert to the Council's
immediate concerns and problems.

22. As was shown in his report (E/259B), his approach
to the question of the future development and direction
of the Secretariat's activities had led him to conclusions
very similar to those already adopted in the Council's
resolutions on United Nations programme priorities and
the concentration of effort and resources. He had
accepted, by and large, the same criteria for the deter­
mination of priorities for Secretariat activities as had
been established for United Nations economic and social
activities as a whole. As a common denominator cement­
ing the various and widespread activities so as to weld
them into a whole made strong by inner unity of purpose,
he had thus endorsed the promotion of economic and
social development, more especially in under-developed
countries, through appropriate inter-governmental organ­
izations.

23. If those objectives were to be pursued with full
vigour and success, the governments must, through the
Council and the General Assembly, share with the Secre­
tariat the responsibility for ensuring that appropriate
action was taken to reduce work of lesser importance
and to avoid new tasks of dubious value. Drawing the
Council's attention to certain practical considerations
mentioned in his report (E{2598), he observed that it
must be recognized that in any international enterprise
of the scope of the United Nations there was a danger
of dispersion of efforts and resources over too many
projects. The very nature of the responsibilities that
must be assumed by the Secretary-General and his senior
staff imposed a limit upon the volume of tasks that
could be handled effectively, irrespective of any addi­
tional funds, personnel and facilities made available;
that was to say, there was an optimum size for the
Secretariat if it was to be efficient in the dynamic devel­
opment of the Organization's activities. That was the
main reason dictating the need for making a choice, but
even without that limitation a choice would be imposed
on the Organization by the fact that the governments
themselves would, after a certain point had been reached,
have difficulty in coping with the mass of documentation
supplied by United Nations organs.

24. A decision therefore had to be taken with due
regard to considerations such as whether a particular
task was one that an international secretariat could per­
form efficiently and effectively; whether it was designed
to meet an urgent and vital need essential for the
proper functioning of the United Nations and its principal
organs; whether the desired result could not be adequately
achieved through independent and unassisted national
action; whether the original importance or usefulness of
certain activities had diminished, or, alternatively,
whether, having regard to the dynamic nature of United
Nations operations, new efforts were called for in new
directions; and whether in a particular field of inquiry or
research full account had been taken of work already
done either nationally or internationally and of the
practical possibilities that therefore existed of making a
new and significant contribution. It went without saying

796th Meeting - 5 July 1954

proved invaluable as a basis for further study and
proposals.
15. The next aim of the review had been to try to
establish, at least tentatively, policy lines, with the
object of determining the main aims and activities; that
was to say, the Secretariat had had to establish criteria
for what it should do and for the way in which it should
do it.
16. The third stage was that of organization, the pur­
pose being to find out what organizational patterns best
fitted the tasks which it was felt should be pursued.
What was required was to establish an " ideal" organiza­
tion, one exhibiting the best possible lines of authority,
communication and combination of work among the
various groups in the Secretariat. The aim at that stage
had been to reach a result where the whole would be more
than merely the sum of the parts, since by combining all
the activities in the best possible way it might be possible
to achieve a general activity where the results obtained
in the various sectors were mutually supporting, so that
each of them acquired and added value as part of a whole.

17. Only the future could tell whether the Secretariat
had succeeded in those aims. He believed, however,
that the new organization was likely to provide a better
scaffolding for the work than had been the case hitherto.

18. Once the lines of co-ordination between the various
activities had been determined, it had been necessary to
establish manning tables showing the staff normally
required for the various activities; and after the decision
had been taken on the target manning tables, a very
important step had remained, that of establishing
transitional arrangements. Here, two major considera­
tions had come into play: first, that the personnel policy
should be so developed as not to cause any unnecessary
hardship and to provide the best possible conditions for
all staff members, even should reorganization result in
some reduction of staff. Secondly, a transitional period
was needed in order to wind up various projects in such a
manner as not to prejudice the aims in view. In many
cases where useful work had been done, it was obvious
that work should be continued, even if the project were
abandoned, so as not to lose the benefit of what had
already been done.
19. He estimated that the transition to the new organi­
zation would take some two or three years. Some might
consider that too long, but he felt that such a transitional
period represented a fairly good balance between the
various interests involved. A long-term undertaking
such as the United Nations would be unwise to allow
itself to be rushed into anything until it was quite clear
that what was being done was being done in the best
possible way.
20. A subsidiary result of the operation just outlined
was that it would effect certain economies, though he
would stress that the principal aim had been not economy,
but the greatest possible effIciency. The final degree of
eCO~l~my to be achieved would depend on two major
deClsIOns, Olle connected with personnel policy, as approved
by the General Assembly, and the other with the pro­
grammes which would also have to be considered by the
AS,sembly in the light of the Economic and Social Coun­
Cil s recommendations.

~chniqUl

Nat'
ject lla~!:\

elpful to'
uringihij
develo~t
J test il!~

Id stud\;!;
n in itl
ore th~t

Hence (
e. Sel!,W

Natioml!.
~red ana~!
,r failure!!!

![j{

-Genera!e
1sibililr;;
1 by~!

e Secr~,

dy will·
:or tha:
1S lllig~:

:hat Hi'
of pro:;

hich t~:

n.

~ecutil'

gest'
mmitt~

Juld k
1 repon
fhe pn,
;sess, '
Jrinci
lich
'ucti
Cha
ation
it coul~



---­~' No dire
tion of the (
the Charter,
Nalions, haI

national eco
il was autl
btneral As:
,~ialized a
~ponsibilit
~sition tha
rocial matte
a!coda was.
uys at a tl
Ilandard co
require the.
~Iicy·makl
subjects reI
oiscussed in
was now a1I
I~e Council
~reviously i

li. HisGc
,uoordinate
consideratic
useful acti,
necessary t
anditssllb<
The Counc
~uested at
~ons, or r
situation w
in!S were 0

1!Ie attend[

,11, The C

oy concent
lion. It Ct

ayear on
and the ac
On the soci
,urvey on
commandit
lame time
agencies in
ano have
loe Expal
Ihose of th

~. Regu
must decic
could be e
hodies she
fxamined
outside tb
Ihat the a
and the tl
would mu
attend. 1
more or If
[oundl tc
and CO-on
national v

J9. Mr. :
10 limit h

General, the Executive Chairman, the organizations
participating in the Technical Assistance Board (TAn)
and TAC. In making that study, ACC would be helped
by the careful examination of those matters contained
in the report, recently issued, of the Advisory Committee
on Budgetary and Administrative Questions (A/2661).
30. Thirdly, it had been generally recognized that there
was need of an assurance of greater and more certain
fmancial support for the Programme as a whole. ACe
hoped that governments would earnestly consider the
vital need for providing long-term financial security for
the Programme on an expanding basis.

31. ACC had been unable to reach agreement on a
revised system of allocations to the participating organ·
izations. Some of its members considered that TAC
should itself determine each year the percentage of
available funds to be allocated for the following year to
each of the participating organizations, as well as the
percentage to be reserved for allocation by TAB. 11
was felt by the agencies favouring that system that it
would retain the merits of the present system while
providing for some flexibility in programme development
in response to changing needs over a period of years.
The majority, however, had favoured an alternative
approach whereby programme priorities of requesting
governments would be established by negotiations at the
country level, subject to a provision which would give
each agency a satisfactory measure of certainty and
stability in its own programming and administrative
planning.

32. He hoped that TAC and the Council would study
those suggestions with the attention they deserved, and,
in particular, that due weight would be given to the consi·
deration that satisfactory technical assistance programmes
were essentially co-operative undertakings based on the
carefully formulated requirements of the recipient coun­
tries, on the one hand, and on the technical resources
and experience of the operating agencies, on the other.
The Expanded Programme of Technical Assistance was
one of the great constructive agreements of international
economic co-operation. It was essential to make sure,
when taking an important step forward, that the right
balance was preserved between the basic elements of
the Programme-central co-ordination, country planning
and the professional experience of the participating
organizations.

33. Mr. MEADE (United Kingdom) expressed his dele·
gation's appreciation of the Secretary-General's personal
attendance at the present session. He would refer later
in the Co-ordination Committee to the Secretary·
General's proposals. His delegation was glad to see that
the general policy envisaged was to achieve a greater
concentration of effort rather than to propose any staff
upheavals, which would necessarily be discouraging to
the staff members themselves.
34.. Two new lines of policy were of fundamental
importance. The Secretary-General was proposing to
spare the Secretariat as much unnecessary and repetitive
work as he could; he intended to give it a clear purpose,
a guiding principle by which its eHorts might be directed.
The United Kingdom delegation whole-heartedly approvcd
that policy.

Economic and Social Council - Eighteenth Session22

that the final responsibility for deciding on programmes
and priorities rested with States Members.
~;I. Feeling that it was the Secretary-General's obvious
duty to offer advice and express an opinion whenever
he deemed it hdpful and pertinent to do so, he had
submitted to the Council a number of proposals looking
towards a shift in emphasis from some of the existing
information service~; and clearing-house activities, a more
limited framework for the prosecution of certain work
requested of the Secretariat in order to bring it within
the trne sphere of the Secretariat's competence, the re­
consideration of certain low-priority projects by the
organs concerned, the recognition of the full responsibility
of specialized agencies for particular tasks clearly within
their mandate, the assumption, under the Secretariat's
general guidance, of certain research, training ancI other
tasks by universities and other private institutions, and
a reduction in the number and length of documents,
including the discontinuance or reduction in frequency
of certain periodicals.
~H. Those proposals appeared in paragraphs 7-27 of
document E/2;:198. They did not involve the elimina­
tion of any major programme or project upon which the
Council or the General Assembly had decided. Such bud­
getary economics as they might entail represented only
a by-product, his only pnrpose having been to ensure
in terms of real benefit to the governments a greater
return on the efforts and resources expended and to
make the Secretariat the effective instrument of govern­
ments that it should be. He counted on the Council's
full support in that endeavour.

27. Dealing next with the organization of the Expanded
Programme of Technical Assistance, he stated that at
its recent session ACC had examined various alternative
proposals under consideration by the Technical Assistance
Committee (TAC). Its findings appeared in paragraphs
10-16 and in the appendix to ACe's sixteenth report
(E/2G07). ACC recognized the great importance of the
issues raised in the various proposals and was appre­
ciative of the concern they reflected for better manage­
ment of the Expanded Programme. The latter was
still in an experimental stage, and all his colleagues
agreed that it should be subject to continuous re-examina­
tion with a view to improving its operation. At the same
time they believed it was most desirable to avoid the
disturbances which inevitably attended frequent changes
in organization and method. After careful examination
of the complex issues involved, ACC had reached unani­
mous agreement on the following points of major
importance.

28. First ACe welcomed the suggestion that TAC,
possibly enlarged so as to broaden its representative
character by the inclusion of non-member States, should
each year review and formally approve the programme
as a whole. That revi(~wwould cIeal not with the technical
aspects of proj eets, but with programme interrelation­
ships, over-all priorities and evaluation. Subject to
those arrangements, the governing body of each partici­
pating agency would be invited to make a technical
review of its annual programme.

2D. Secondly, it had becn decided to study certain
aspects of the present relationships between the Secretary-



796th Meeting - 5 July 195~

:r • I fr~:..
~amzahofll'

lard (TAB!W~

1be heliXl~
, contaill~M

Cornmitl~~I;

~A/26611, %

I that then!;
ore cerlakt
[lole. A((M
msider l~~
;ecurity 1lit

ment on i~

Hng organ'l
that TAr.

·centage ~l';
'ing year III
well as 11;
r TAB, )!1

tern thatr!'
stem whijl~;

evelopmen:li
d of yean!1
altematilil
requestin:

tions at It;~

would ~nli

:tainty an(!
ninistratili;

vould stu~lr
;erved, aal(
to the cOllil
programm~~

ased on I~d

[pimt cour,l;
al resoumi
1 the othfli
istance WI'

ltematloni·
mal~e SUlI

it the rigl't
~lements Ilil
ry planniru(
articipatimt

,ed his del~

,1's personl
:1 refer lal,!
Secreta~

1to see th1
~ a greale
;e any si!!
:lUraging If

11l1damenli
:oposing \1

d repetitin
:ar purpoli;
be direct~)
ly approv~1

35. No direct mention had been made of the reorganiza­
tion of the Council itself. The Council, in the words of
the Charter, was a "principal organ" of the United
Nations, having special powers in connexion with inter­
national economic, social, cultural and other matters;
it was authorized to make recommendations to the
General Assembly, to States Members, and to the
specialize~.~gencies; it ~lso ha~ important c~-ordinating
responsib111t1es. Accordlllgly, It should be 1ll a better
position than at present to give a lead on economic and
social matters of international concern. At present, the
agenda was such that the members were constrained, for
days at a time, to discuss subjects which by no possible
standard could be judged as of sufficient importance to
require the attention of those who were responsible for
policy-making in the individual countries. Many of the
subjects reviewed could be better and more profitably
discussed in the specialized agencies, whose membership
was now almost universal. Very often the discussion in
the Council was a mere reiteration of what had been
previously said in an agency.

36. His Government felt that the Council had too many
subordinate bodies, all of which sent forward reports for
consideration. There was no question of stifling any
useful activity in thc name of economy, but it was
necessary to ensure that the work done by the Council
and its subordinate bodies was really useful and effective.
The Council had habitually on its agenda reports re­
quested at earlier sessions as a means of deferring deci­
sions, or requested in connexion with some transient
situation which no longer obtained. Hence, many meet­
ings were occupied with matters which could not justify
the attendance of government policy-makers.

37. The Council should give the lead and could do so
by concentrating on problems connected with co-ordina­
tion. It could review the world economic situation once
a year on the basis of the Secretariat's annual report
and the activities of the regional economic commissions.
On the social side, there might be a similar broad annual
survey on a policy level. Those debates would assume
commanding importance. The Council would, at the
same time, co-ordinate the activities of the specialized
agencies in accorda.nce with Article 63 (2) of the Charter,
and have general control of such vital programmes as
the Expanded Technical Assistance Programme and
those of the United Nations Children's Fund (UNICEF).

38. Regular sessions should be shortened. The Council
must decide whether discussion which seemed redundant
could be eliminated. The need for existing subordinate
bodies should be scrutinized. Some items might be
examined at committee meetings, or at resumed sessions
outside the main sessions. His Government believed
that the agenda could be limited to main policy items,
and the two annnual sessions restricted to periods which
would make it possible for more Cabinet Ministers to
attend. The building stage could be considered as being
more or less at an end, and the time had come for the
Council to exercise a new function of policy-reviewing
and co-ordinating which would be of the greatest inter­
national valuc.

39. Mr. BRILEJ (Yugoslavia) intended at that stage
to limit his remarks to certain general principles which

23

his delegation believed had to be borne in mind if the
Council was to carry out efficiently the various tasks
entrusted to it. The fundamental task of the Council,
in accordance with the terms of tbe Charter, was to
create the conditions of stability and well-being which
were the pre-requisite for peaceful and friendly relations
among nations. The time had gone when stability
could be more or less maintained through the division of
the world amongst a few large empires. An non-self­
governing territories were striving for independence, and
new States had come into existence after both world
wars. International co-operation was the only way in
which the numerous independent national economies
could be made to work together, and it was a principal
responsibility of the Council to achieve it.

40. The question of the under-developed countries was
the main element in the complex of problems which
embraced such other matters as the expansion of inter­
national financing, full employment, the promotion of
international trade, the development of productive
resources, and a number of social and humanitarian
problems. His delegation accordingly welcomed the
United Kingdom suggestion of concentrating on major
policy issues at two shorter regular sessions each year,
which would be attended by high-ranking representatives.
His delegation also favoured the idea of transfonning
the committees of the Council into standing committees
which could assume some of the present functions of the
plenary sessions; they could later submit short reports
in a plenary meeting. While the committees' sessions
could not be made permanent, since they could not
assume the tasks of the functional commissions, they
could, however, meet as necessary at shorter intervals.

41. The number of functional commissions should not
be unnecessarily increased. They were expert bodies
best adapted to the study of complex problems on a
continuing basis, and they provided the data on which
decisions could be takell; moreover, they allowed coun­
tries which were not members of the Council to participate
directly in its work. Some, as for instance the Statistical
Commission, had proved their worth; others, as for
instance the Fiscal Commission, were apparently unable
to comply with their terms of reference. The Economic
Employment and Development Commission, which
dealt with the fundamental problems of world economy,
had been suspended by a decision of the Council at its
thirteenth session (resolution 414 B.I (XIII)). His dele­
gation felt that each of those complex problems required
thorough study before any decision could usefully be taken.

42. It would seem advisable to have separate functional
commissions to deal with such essential' problems as
international financing and the stabilization of the
international primary commodity market. It had
already been decided to set up a commission for thc
stabilization of primary commodities (resolution 512 A
(XVII)); the second body might study some of the
specific problems now included in the Council agenda.
At present, there was no world agency studying the two
categories of problem in their entirety.
43. While the regional commissions could deal with
the utilization of water resources, the Council should
take a more active part in developing economic resources



the matter should be decided after a general discussion
in the Council itself.

The suggestions made by the President were approved.

48. Mr. HOTCHKIS (United States of America) noted
with approval that the Secretary-General had chosen as
his central theme the need for concentration of effort
on major issues. Members were indebted to him for
having so clearly and courageously pointed out present
shortcomings. The Council, which was one of the prin­
cipal organs of the United Nations, had broad respon­
sibilities,because the advancement of well-being through­
out the world was an essential counterpart to the work
of the United Nations for the preservation of peace.
49. Though the Council had achieved much during its
first eight years of existence it was not operating as
effectively as was desirable. The agenda of each session
was so overloaded as to prevent adeqnate consideration
of each item, and much time was spent on the discussion
of issues which would at best little affect the future
course of events. As a corollary, the Secretariat was
frequently overburdened with tasks from which little
practical result could be expected. Means must be
sought of transforming the Council into a fully effective
and efficient instrument of general economic and social
progress. As a first step, he believed that it would be
possible to lighten the Council's agenda while at the
same time increasing its effectiveness in the following
ways.
50. First, the general programmes of the specialized
agencies should be discussed once every two years only,
That in no way implied that less attention should bE
paid to their work; rather he hoped that the agencies
particularly the International Bank for Reconstructior
and Development and the International Monetary Func
would in future take a more active part in the dis
cussion of items concerning them.
51. Secondly, no items, including those connected witl
trade union rights and technical assistance, should hi
discussed more than once a year.
52. Thirdly, paragraph 17 in section A II (b) of resolu
tion 414 (XIII) should be amended so that the subjec
of "full employment" might be discussed as part 0

the world economic situation instead of being discusse,
annually. If in any particular year the employmen
position throughout the world should become critical i
could, of course, be discussed as a separate item.
53. Fourthly, the Council's commissions and sub-carr
missions should be requested to concentrate their efiod
on major issues and to refrain from recommending t
the Council any projects not likely to make a real cor
tribution towards the advancement of United Natior
objectives. Accordingly, no new studies should 1:
undertaken without full consultation with the Secretar1

General and, in the case of requests addressed to speci~
ized agencies, prior approval by the Council.
54. Fifthly, an appeal might be made to governmen
not to propose any new items of work unless they we
of primary importance.
55. Although such measures would help to short(
sessional agendas, the Council's work would continue
be very heavy and would require special organization

Economic and Social Council - Eighteenth Session

generally, including the application of atomic energy
for peaceful purposes; a functional commission could
make an appreciable contribution on that subject.

~!l. A discussion of world social problems would enable
the Council to concentrate its eHorts. In the years in
which there were no reports to be considered, the Social
Commission could make a detailed study of conclusions
resulting from the general debate the previous year,
and plan practical schemes in the light of its own findings.
It was essential to have a suitable subordinate body
dealing with the task, entrusted to the Council under
Article 62 of the Charter, of eradicating prejudice and
protecting minorities. In spite of political and other
difficulties, progress had been made in regard to informa­
tion; much more might be achieved by having a special
body dealing with the freedom of nations. No change of
organization at present seemed necessary in the Com­
mission on Human Rights or in the Commission on the
Status of Women; the Council should lay down a working
programme for each.

45. His delegation appreciated the deep understanding of
the problems under consideration by the Council which
the Secretary-General had displayed when approaching
the question of reorganization. In connexion with
the proposed reorganization, his delegation believed
that research work played a vitally important role in
the Secretariat and that the most important of the
present studies and reviews should remain the concern
of the Secretariat; that, however, would not preclude
collaboration with universities and scientific institutions.
It did not seem that technical assistance and research
work could be integrated to any considerable degree
without considerable damage to research work, but
studies could be made in collaboration with the specialized
agencies and the regional commissions.

46. His delegation would listen with an open mind to
the other members of the Council, and might have
formal proposals to make when the detailed discussion
took place in the Co-ordination Committee.

47. The PRESIDENT thanked the Secretary-General
for his valuable contribution to the discussion. He
reminded members that the Council had decided, in its
resolution 512 A (XVII), in connexion with the reorgani­
zation of the Council and its commissions, to examine
together a proposed amendment to rule 82 of the Council's
rules of procedure and the organization and establishment
of a permanent advisory commission on international
commodity trade. He suggested that, in accordance
with the Secretary-General's proposal, the reorganization
of the Council would be considered by the Co-ordination
Committee. The question of amending rule 82 would
be referred to the Council Committee on Non-Govern­
mental Organizations. The Secretary"General had
suggested that the question of the permanent advisory
commission might be referred to the Co-ordination
Committee, and, if necessary, to the Economic Committee,
for examination of the comments received :from States
Members. The Secretariat proposed that if the Council
was unable to decide to which committee the question of
the permanent advisory commission should be referred,

i
1

1

:' ~

I,,' 1

I

~'ii 24I1 _

i i,. :
1', \
!' I
I I

i I
! :



796thMeeting - 5 July 1954

changes concerning which he would make some general
observations while reserving the right to make specific
proposals in the Co-ordination Committee.

56. The Council might consider holding a third session
of two to three weeks in J anual'y instead of the usual
brief resumed summer session which normally took
place before Christmas. At that third annual session
the Council would deal with the usual business of the
resumed session and consider such items as could be
dealt with by permanent delegations at Headquarters.
Thus the more important items could be discussed at
the spring and summer sessions, which could be reduced
in length to a maximum of three and four weeks respec­
tively provided the earlier measures he had suggested
were adopted.

57. His delegation felt that the Council's functional and
regional commissions should be maintained and that no
change was needed in their terms of reference, frequency
of meetings or composition. They all discharged essential
functions, and the better they did so, the easier it would
be for the Council to deal with their recommendations.

58. As stated at the seventeenth session, the United
States delegation understood the serious problems
created by excessive price instability for countries
producing primary commodities. Its opposition to the
creation of a new permanent advisory commission on
international commodity trade was not directed at the
general objectives sought but at the particular machinery
proposed. His country's genuine concern with such
problems had been amply demonstrated in practice,
ranging as it did from direct action to ensure orderly
international markets for particular commodities to
assisting under-developed countries to attack the core
of the problem by diversifying their economies.

59. The organization of a commission on the lines set
forth in resolution 512 A (XVII) raised most difficult
questions for the United States as to its participation in
the commission. The reasons why his Government
nwintained its view were set out in its comments (E/2623),
and he noted that at least half of the small number of
other governments which had replied proposed that the
establishment of the commission should be postponed
in order to give time for further consideration.

60. The regional economic commissions had done very
well, but their work should be integrated more closely
with that of the Council. His Government was disturbed
by the tendency of some of them and of their secretariats
to go their own way, ignoring the directing functions of
the Council. Any attempt on their part to deal with
world-wide economic issues without going through the
Council was contrary to their terms of reference and the
purposes for which they had been set up. The Ad Hoc
Committee on the Organization and Operation of the
Council and its Commissions had stated in paragraph 10
of its second report (E(1995(Add.1) submitted at the
thirteenth session of the Council: " It is, therefore, the
opinion of the Committee that the Council should, on
its part, continue to exercise policy guidance, particularly
in respect to such matters as the inauguration of major
projects or of organizational changes in the regional
economic commissions." That statement of principle
was important enough to warrant the adoption of a

25

special resolution at the present session. He also hoped
that the Secretary-General would do everything necessary
to ensure that the principle was observed by the secre­
tariats of the regional commissions.
61. In principle his Government endorsed the Secretary­
General's proposals to elimintate as far as possible
Secretariat studies and publications which were not
essential to the policy discussions of the Council and its
commissions. At the same time, in the interest of orderly
procedure, it would be desirable for the Secretary-General
to take up with the functional commissions any proposals
for the elimination of studies and publications which
had originated with them and had been formally approved
by the Council. That should not prevent him from
reducing the programme to a strict minimum.
62. The above-mentioned changes would go far towards
increasing the effectiveness of the United Nations work
in promoting general welfare, but the efficacy of any
devices to simplify the Council's work would be limited
because its heavy responsibilities under the Charter had
increased rather than diminished. Justice could not be
done to the importance and scope of the Council's work
unless States Members were prepared to devote adequate
time and staff to it. His Government would continue to
exert every effort, together with other Members, to
maintain the Council as the principal organ of the
United Nations for the advancement of economic and
social progresss " and better standards of life in greater
freedom ".

63. Mr. MORALES (Argentina) commended the Secre­
tary-General on his studies on the organization and
operation of the Council and its commissions (E(2541
and E(2598) and thanked him for coming to Geneva for
the present session. He requested that, in view of its
importance, the Secretary-General's statement at that
meeting should be circulated as a Council document.
6!~. The Argentine delegation considered that there
were many and varied reasons to justify a review of the
organization and operation of the Council and its com­
missions, in order to achieve the aims of Article 55 of
the Charter.
65. After recalling the Council's functions and their
importance in connexion with the purposes of the United
Nations, he pointed out that between the aims to be
achieved and the results so far obtained there was a
very wide gap which must be closed. The Council had
not in fact succeeded in becoming a truly efiective organ
for dealing with economic and social problems; it had
strayed from the pursuit of concrete solutions to the
study of problems which were frequently unconnected
with its main tasks. However, that difficulty could
probably not be remedied by a formula restricted to
structural reorganization. Only if governments contri­
buted to the solution of problems and displayed great
breadth of vision could new life be breathed into the
Council's work.
66. The main question affecting the fruitfulness of the
Council's activities was the number of members. That
question being regulated by the Charter, the Argentine
Government had resolved to propose an amendment to
the Charter in order to increase the membership of the
Council in accordance with the increase in the number



­Printed in

-----· the United
uoos, Cot
the itemS

· lD3~og at
~, AqU€
which wen

· or were pt
~th anll1
&ffered 01

· ~rha~s ril
made 10 a

· ~ ableli
· worthy of

lundamenl
allow mon
ficlds.
Wl. Neve

· fllinted 01

lay with .
had been 1

re~isticall

French del
in order tl
document:
the world
published
might als
Council 01

~uch ade
as possibl
grammes,
sfi:cialize(
commissio
and the,
economic

'out by Cl

authority
~to consi
18, Wit!
~i2598),

observatil
moment,
remarks:
i9. The
report th
tend mor
Mvelopm
developee
that opir
activities
not be fl
compare
mutually

7G. The reorganization of the Secretariat contemplated
by the Secretary-General lent particular importance to
the question of regional commissions. The situation
would best be studied simultaneously in the Council
and its commissions on the one hand and by the Secre.
tariat on the other. The Argentine delegation supported
the Secretary-General's proposals, which revealed a clear
understanding of the problem, and shared the view
that reorganization should take place gradually.
77. As for any economies which might be made, they
should be not the chief aim of the proposed changes but
rather the natural outcome of rational organization of
activities.
78. His delegation had great expectations of the con·
tribution which the Secretariat would make to the
Council's work in studying economic problems, but felt
that reorganization of work should take account of past
experience, particularly in the matter of technical assis­
tance.
79. With regard to documents, as the Secretary-General
himself had pointed out, it was desirable to avoid all
duplication with existing international or national pub.
lications. The documents published by the United
Nations should mainly serve as guides for bibliographical
purposes. Particular emphasis should moreover be laid
by the United Nations on essential publications such as
periodical studies on the world economic situation and
the world social situation or on problems bearing on
world economic organization, such as full employment,
economic financing or industrial development.
80. There should be a very clear distinction between
activities which were the direct concern of governments
and those which could be performed by the United
Nations Secretariat. Everything appertaining to State
policy should continue to be reserved for governmental
committees or organs, and only technical questions of
international concern should be studied by international
organizations with authority to make proposals, the
action of governments being confined to meetings and
conferences held to consider the work done and issue
directives for the future.
81. Finally, the important work performed by the
specialized agencies and other inter-governmental and
regional bodies, such as the Organization of American
States, should not be overlooked. Effective contact
must be maintained with such bodies and adequate
co-ordination ensured.

82. His delegation, which was anxious to collaborate
as closely and effectively as possible in the reorganization
of the Council and its commissions, reserved the right
to submit further observations to the Co-ordination
Committee.

83. .Mr. ABELIN (France) welcomed the opportunity
prOVIded for members of the Council to confer with the
Secretary-General.

84. The Council's task was twofold: first, co-ordination
at the policy-making level, and secondly, definition of
the guiding principles of the economic and social pro­
grammes of the United Nations.
85. In order to achieve those aims, the first step was to
shorten the agenda of sessions, as had been suggested by

Economic and Social Council - ~ighteenth Session
~-~~~~~------------

26

of States Memhers and to improve geographical distribu­
tion.
07. So far a~ concerned the Council's work, it had to
be admitted that the number of questions referred to it
was constantly increasing, that the questions were more
and mor<: varied and that the Council's attention had
sometimes been needlessly devoted to problems of minor
importance. In urder to remedy that state of affairs
questions of deblil should in future be considered, not
in the Council itself, but in the specialized committees,
or dealt with at the regional level.
U8. The Argentine lldegation agreed with the United
Kingdom delegatioll as tu the need for a higher level of
representation within the Council, which would have
the e[f{:ct of enhancing the value of the decisions taken.
89. At the present stage the Argtmtine delegation
wished to reserve its position with regard to the setting­
up of standing committees; it would state its views on
that question in the Co-ordination Committee. It con­
sidered th,lt periodic meetings must continue to be held
if the Council was to perform its functions; the pre­
paratory work could be carried out by working parties
in the iuttrvals between sessions.

70. The holding of a third Council session in January,
as proposed by the United States representative, would
enable current problems to be settled.

71. The Argentine delegation had concluded from a
careful study of the operation of the Council and its
organs that, whereas in the social field the appropriate
commissions studied the problems referred to the Council,
such was not the case in the economic field. While it
was true that questions as vital as the world economic
situation and economic development, for example, should
be examined by the Council itself, other complex pro­
blems were not dealt with satisfactorily. If, therefore,
a permanent advisory commission on international com­
modity trade were set up, it would fill a considerable gap.

72. So far as concerned other economic problems, the
Co-ordination Committee should consider how they
might best be studied. The Argentine delegation re­
served the right to submit proposals on the subject later.

73. In the social field the Argentine Government con­
sidered that the work of the Social Commission might
be more fruitful. That Commission should not be over­
burdened with minor questions and should be in a
!losition to study problems as a whole.

74. The Commission on Human Rights should be
tntrusted with all questions within its purview which
had been dispersed among other organs, except, however,
for questions submitted to the Commission on the Status
of Women, which should carry on with its work.

75. The regional commissions represented one of the
most fruitful experiments by the Council; that was
particularly true of the Economic Commission for Latin
Ame:ica, in which Argentina co-operated very closely.
In VieW of the concrete results achieved by that Com­
missio~1, the Council should grant it still greater impor­
tance m the future. The Argentine delegation had noted
with satisfaction the Secretary-General's observations
on that subject in the documents which he had submitted
to the Council.



796th Meeting - 5 July 1954

!l

the United Kingdom, yugoslav and ~ni~edStates delega­
tions. Council commIttees or comrmSSlOns should study
the items beforehand so that the amount of speech­
making at plenary meetings could be limited.
86. A question wort.h considering was whether matters
which were included m the agenda as a matter of course
or were purely procedural should continue to be dealt
with annually at the Council's sessions. Opinions
differed on that point, some delegations considering,
perhaps rightly, that even though no progress could be
made in a given field it was right that members should
be able to explain their attitude. Another question
worthy of study was whether a less frequent but more
fundamental examination of certain questions would not
allow more real progress to be made in certain important
fields.
87. Nevertheless, as the representative of Argentina had
pointed out, the primary responsibility in the matter
lay with the governments. Since 1951 some progress
had been made and problems had been approached more
realistically in the Council and its commissions. The
French delegation considered that the work of the Council,
in order to be effective, should be based on appropriate
documentation and, in particular, that the reports on
the world economic and social situations should not be
published at too long intervals. The Secretary-General
might also perhaps submit a yearly message to the
Council on the situation in fields within its competence.
Such a document would contain, in as synoptic a form
as possible, an over-all picture of activities and pro­
grammes, taking account not only of the reports of the
specialized agencies, but also of those of the regional
commissions, the functional commissions, TAC, UNICEF
and the various semi-autonomous bodies administering
economic and social programmes. The work carried
out by certain regional bodies whose competence and
authority were generally recognized would also be taken
into consideration.
88. With regard to the Secretary-General's report
(Ej2598) , he would reserve the right to make certain
observations to the Co-ordination Committee. For the
moment, he would confine himself to the following
remarks:
89. The Secretary-General expressed the opinion in the
report that the work Of the United Nations should
tend more and more towards promoting the economic
development of countries that were industrially under­
developed. The French delegation, while fully sharing
that opinion, believed that the importance of certain
activities relating to the more developed countries should
lIot be forgotten. Those countries should be able to
compare the lessons of their experience and benefit
mutually from the progress they had achieved. Inciden-

Printed in Switzerland

21

tally, the Secretary-General himself, in the same report,
stressed the value of further developing co-ordinated
action for the expansion of trade, a move which would
affect the under-developed countries in the economic
sphere and the more developed countries in the industrial
field. The Secretary-General was also right in considering
that the regional commissions should be closely associated
with such work.
90. The French delegation likewise approved the Secre­
tary-General's remarks on concentration of effort on
matters directly related to the formulation of economic
policy and to economic development. It further agreed
with the Secretary-General on the need for cutting down
research and studies to a certain extent, the example
quoted in paragraphs 21 and 2,2, of document E/2598 in
connexion with human rights being particularly signifi­
cant.
91. He would also like to draw the Secretary-General's
attention to the fact that the practice of delegating
certain highly complex or specialized tasks to research
institutions, non-governmental organizations or experts
should never be allowed to upset the balance between
the various cultures and languages of States Members.
The principle of such a balance, which was essential
within the United Nations, had been enunciated in the
Charter, and the French delegation was not alone in
being concerned to see that it was observed in practice.
92. Finally, his delegation could not subscribe out of
hand to all the numerous reductions contemplated in
the social field. Approval in principle of the Secretary­
General's memorandum must not be interpreted as
endorsing in advance every proposal for the abolition
or continuance of activities of the functional commis­
sions, particularly the Social Commission, which should
be given a hearing before a final decision was taken.
93. The proposed fusion of the Department of Econo­
mic Affairs and the Department of Social Affairs was
actually well under way, as the two departments were
already working in close association.
94. The French delegation, which regarded decentraliza~

tion as being in the interest of the universality of the
United Nations, also approved of the proposed transfer
of certain activities to Geneva.
95. Any savings which might be effected should, in its
opinion, be devoted to the positive tasks confronting
the United Nations in the economic and social fields.
96. Finally, the French delegation relied upon the
Secretary-General to prevent monolingualism in the
Secretariat and also the too exclusive influence of the
methods and habits of the country in which the Head­
quarters was situated.

The meeting rose at 1.20 p.m.

July 1954-1;250




